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Plaintiffs in the lower court will be referred to herein as Plain- 

tiffs or Respondents. Defendants in the lower court will be referred to 

herein as Defendants or Petitioners. All references to the Record on 

Appeal will be made with an '3'' followed by the appropriate page nu&er. 

All references to the Petitioners' Appendix will be m d e  with an "A" 

followed by the appropriate page rimer. A1 1 references to the Respon- 

dents' Appendix will be m d e  with an "RA" followed by the appropriate 

page nwer. 



IHE DEISImJ OF ?HE FIFIH DISTRICT CCUJ3I' OF APPEAL W I C H  
REYEFEED A DIRECI'ED VERDICT Fa3 ?HE PFTITICNERS mJ ?HE 
ISSUE QF PUNITIVE DAlWES EXPRESSLY AND DIRECITY 
aCNnICrS WITH PRICR DM=ISI(rJS OF ?HIS CWRT AND UlHER 
DISTRICI' O(XIRTS OF APPEAL. 

The Respondents in their answer brief urge this Court to adopt a 

rule of law that in every fraud case submitted to a jury the plaintiff 

is entitled to have the jury also consider the award of punitive damages 

against the defendant. The Respondents thus contend the trial judge 

lacks the power in fraud cases to determine on a motion for directed 

verdict whether there is any legal basis in the evidence for the 

recovery of punitive damages. 

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in the instant 

case clearly agreed with the position of the Respondents. This decision 

directly conflicts with Schief v. Live Supply, Inc., 431 So.2d 602 (Fla. 

4th DCA 1983), pet. for rev. denied, 440 So.2d. 352 (Fla. 1983). In 

Schief, the Fourth District Court of Appeal held that only certain types 

of fraudulent conduct would allow the inposition of punitive damages and 

that a jury instruction to the contrary was reversible error. If the 

trial judge finds that evidence of outrageous conduct is not present in 

the evidence, he is duty-bound to grant a directed verdict for the 

defendant on the issue of punitive damages. 

In both Corn Oil Conpany, Inc. v. OILaughlin, 466 So.2d 1061 (Fla. 

1985) and White Construction Co. v. Dupont, 455 So.2d 1026 (Fla. 1984) 

this Court held that the degree of negligence necessary for punitive 

damages is willful and wanton misconduct equivalent to criminal 

manslaughter. Although Coma, supra, involved a tort other than fraud, -- 
this Court upheld the trial court which had granted a directed verdict 



against the plaintiffs on the issue of punitve damages. In White, 

supra, also a non-fraud case, this Court reversed the trial court's 

refusal to grant a directed verdict to the defendants on the issue of 

punitive damages. 

In Harris v. Lewis State Bank, 482 So.2d 1378, (Fla. 1st DCA 1986), 

the First District Court of Appeal, in discussing the circmstances in 

which punitive damages m y  be recovered in a fraud action, said at Page 

".... A person who has sustained a pecuniary loss as a result 
of fraudulent misrepresentations may recover punitive 
damages from the wrongdoer, provided there has been an award 
of coqensatory damages, where the fraud is characterized by 
malicious and outrageous aggravation, or where the fraud is 
accoqanied by an unlawful taking or trespass on the part of 
the defendant. Allegations that the defendant perpetrated a 
fraud with willful and wanton disregard of the rights of the 
plaintiff have been held sufficient to plead an adequate 
predicate for puni t ive damages. " 

Contrary to Plaintiffs' statement that Hutchens v. Weinberger, 452 

So.2d 1024 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984), supports their position, the Fourth 

District Court of Appeal in Hutchens states, at page 1025, that an 

aggrieved Plaintiff in a fraud case m y  recover punitive damages only if 

the defendant acted outrageously. In Hutchens, the trial court's 

refusal to grant a directed verdict as to punitive damages was affirmed 

and it is implicit in Hutchens that if the record had not supported the 

trial judge's decision that the refusal to grant a directed verdict 

would have been reversed. 

In an annotation captioned "Recovery of Punitive Damages in Action 

by Purchasers of Real Property Charging Fraud or Misrepresentation", 19 

ALR 4th Series, Page 801, it is stated at Page 805: 

"General ly speaking, courts awarding exenpl ary or puni t ive 
damages in the fraud field point out that "ordinary" or 
"simple1' fraud alone is not enough for punitive damages; 



addi t i onal ci rcuns t ances of aggravat ion, as where the fraud 
is malicious, deliberate, gross, or wanton, are essential 
for the successful recovery of such damages. The 
Restatement (Second) of Torts 5 908 (1979), followed by the 
court in Holed v. Hoffschneider (1980, Iowa) 297 NW2d 210, 
19ALR4th 792, 9 infra), provides that punitive damages 
may be awarded for conduct that is outrageous, a product of 
the defendant's evil motive, or his reckless indifference to 
the rights of others. The Restatement suggests that the 
trier of fact, in awarding punitive damages, can properly 
consider the character of the defendant 's act, the nature 
and extent of the harm suffered by the plaintiff, and the 
wealth of the defendant. Under the Restatement, reckless 
indifference to the rights of others and a conscious, 
deliberate disregard of these rights m y  provide the 
necessary inference of intent or state of mind to justify an 
award of punitive damages. l1 

Although the Fifth District Court of Appeal refused to address on 

the merits whether or not the trial court erred in directing a verdict 

for the Petitioners, it is helpful to review the testimony and exhibits 

contained in the record as to the reasons why the trial judge directed a 

verdict for Petitioners. 

Although the Respondents brought numerous counts and m y  fraud 

allegations against the Petitioners, it has now been determined by the 

lower court and the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, that the 

only mtter that should have been submitted to the jury was whether or 

not Petitioners had defrauded the Respondents on the so-called 

"oceanfront developntl1 claim, and their damages, if any. (A-1). 

The position of the Petitioners in their initial brief and at this 

time is that there was no conpetent proof in the record of fraud or of 

any damages sustained by the Respondents. The Petitioner, First 

Interstate Develo@hent C~rporat ion (llFi rst Interstatef1) purchased in 

1971 a tract of land in the City of Cape Canaveral, Brevard County, 

Florida (R. 1187). First Interstate filed a special zoning request with 

the City of Cape Canaveral on May 25, 1972, to permit a planned unit 



developnt (llPUD") on 20 acres of the land. (FW-25). The application 

to the City (RA-23) delineates the boundaries of the PUD as a tract of 

land 660 feet deep extending from Atlantic Avenue in an easterly 

direction for approximately 2400 feet to a point on the West 

right-of-way line of Ridgewood Avenue, if extended Northerly, then in a 

tapering northeasterly direction to the Atlantic Ocean. (RA-23). 

After extensive 1 it igation the City of Cape Canaveral was ordered 

by the courts to permit developnt of the project, which was then known 

as "Puerto Del Sol" (R. 1201). First Interstate elected not to develop 

the property and entered into an oral contract to sell the PUD to Ocean 

Woods, Inc. (llOcean Woods") for $608,000 or $2,000.00 per residential 

dwelling unit (R. 1192). Richard H. Stottler, Jr. was the secretary of 

and a 25% shareholder in First Interstate. Four persons unrelated to 

Ocean Woods owned the other 75% of the stock of First Interstate. Mr. 

Stottler owned two-thirds of the stock of Ocean Woods and the other 

Petitioner, Thomas E. Wasdin (llWasdinll) was the president of Ocean Woods 

and owned one-third of the stock of Ocean Woods. 

Many of the Plaintiffs who obtained judgments against the Peti- 

tioners said they relied solely on a brochure distributed by Ocean Woods 

as to the oceanfront representation (R. 2709-2711; A-46; RA 16-18). The 

only reference in the brochure to the ocean is the -11 scaled map of 

the location of the project (A-50) and the following words: 

"Ocean Woods is located in Cape Canaveral , Florida, set 
among the natural tropical foliage of the area and nestled 
in a quiet site extending from North Atlantic Avenue to the 
Atlantic Ocean.... We offer many varieties of outdoor 
activities such as....a beautiful stretch of white sand 
beach for which Florida is famous ....I1 

The PUD site map (RA-23) reflects that the site provides ocean 

access on the north boundary of the FUD. 



When the testimony of those plaintiffs to whom oceanfront project 

representations were made is examined, there is not much additional 

substance or clarification as to the exact meaning of the represen- 

tation. Such Plaintiffs testified that one or more of Ocean Woods' 

enployees represented to them that the project was an "oceanfront 

project." It is undisputed that Ocean Woods Homeowners' Association has 

been provided a p e m e n t  25-foot easement for access to the ocean in 

the approximate location as shown on the PUD application (RA-23). 

The Plaintiffs, when asked what had been promised to them in the 

brochure or orally by employees of Ocean Woods, all said they knew and 

understood that the ocean-front lying to the east of the PUD boundaries 

would be developed for use as private residences. Some said they were 

told high-rise apartments would be built on the ocean, and a 

surprisingly large nunher said that Ocean Woods personnel told them that 

it had not yet been decided what was going to be built on the ocean. 

The Plaint i ffs said that, a1 though they had received access to the 

ocean, they were damaged because the 11 acres of ocean-front property 

had not been made a part of the project. They speculated that if the 

ocean-front site was a part of the project, they could use c m n  areas 

to be located on such site as additional points of access to the ocean. 

They also claimed that if all of the ocean-front property was a part of 

the PUD, it would have made their property somehow more marketable. 

All of the Plaintiffs testified that their units were located so 

far from the beach (4 of a mile to better than 3 of a mile), they could 

not see the ocean, and as Defendant's expert witness said, ''....the 

amenity you get from the ocean in this project is the roar and the 

snell.ll (R. 1513). All of the witnesses also testified they had 



ocean access. So their case amounted to their subjective beliefs as to 

what the brochure and Ocean Woods1 erqloyees said. There is no doubt 

that the HID, in fact, is "nestled in a quiet site extending from North 

Atlantic Avenue to the Atlantic Oceanf1 as provided for in Exhibit 16 

(A-46-50). Since access is provided to the ocean, the statement in the 

brochure that, "We offer many varieties of outdoor activities such 

as....a beautiful stretch of white sand beach for which Florida is 

famous," also is true. It is quite apparent, therefore, that those 

persons who relied solely on the brochure should not be allowed to 

recover. 

As to those Plaintiffs who were told that the PUD would be an 

ocean-front development, it is evident that the promise was one to be 

performed in the future. As to such promises to be perfomd in the 

future, the law requires that at the time the statements were mde that 

the person m i n g  them had no intention of performing the promise. Even 

at the trial Ocean Woods was sti 11 proceeding in an easterly direction 

towards the ocean and sti 11 had not built all of the units within the 

FUD boundaries. Ocean Woods had an oral right of first refusal from 

First Interstate which required First Interstate to give Ocean Woods the 

right to buy the ocean-front tract before selling it to another party. 

Ocean Woods had considered purchasing the property over three years 

prior to the trial and developing it as part of the PUD, but at meetings 

of the homeowners in Ocean Woods some of the Plaintiffs expressed their 

adamant opposition to the site being made a part of the PUD, because 

they did not want the people who would live on the ocean to have the 

right to use the recreational facilities built in Ocean Woods. The 

property was sti 11 available at the trial for purchase by Ocean Woods 



under its rights of first refusal, but at that time Ocean Woods was 

still developing the remaining lots in the PUD and had not yet reached 

that stage of construction. 

About the only thing the Plaintiffs were able to articulate about 

their damages if the project was not ocean-front was the prospective 

loss of their alleged rights to wander around the comnon areas that 

. might be created on the ocean-front site. Since they had access to the 

ocean and all of them knew they were too far from the beach to see the 

ocean without walking half of a mile or so, the only legal damage they 

could sustain would be a diminution of additional, prospective rights to 

use the comnon property that might be located on the ocean in the 

development of the ocean-front tract, when, as and if that ever occured. 

The Respondents' expert witness admitted that he as an expert was 

unable, after diligent research, to locate conparable properties and 

could not express an opinion as to the amount of the loss incurred by 

the Plaintiffs due to alleged ocean-front misrepresentations. Despite 

the fact that their own expert could not qualify to testify about the 

Plaintiffs' alleged losses, the trial court, over the objection of the 

Petitioners, allowed all of the Plaintiffs to testify as to the dollar 

amount of their dmges arising out of the alleged misrepresentations 

under the guise that the owners could testify, even if their expert 

could not, as to their opinion as to the actual value of their property 

at the time they purchased it. This "actual value" the Plaintiffs 

testified about was a deduction of from approximately five per cent ( 5 % )  

to twenty-five per cent ( 2 5 % )  of the purchase price of the unit from 

Ckean Woods. The jury awarded the Plaintiffs as damages precisely 

fifteen per cent (15%) of the amounts they paid to Ocean Woods. 



Petitioners contend that there was no conpetent evidence in the 

record showing outrageous conduct of the Petitioners on which the trial 

judge could have submitted the issue of punitive damages to the Jury. 

In fact there was such a paucity of testimony as to damages that the 

trial court erred in submitting the last remaining fraud issue to the 

jury. 

POINT 11. 

?HE DEISICN aF ?HE FIFTH DISIRICT COURT OF APPEAL WICH 
REMANDED 'IHE CALJSE FCR A TRIAL CN ?HE ISSUE OF PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES CNLY EXPRESSLY AND DIRECI'LY CICPJFLICI'S WITH PRICR 
DECISI(3NS OF FKRIDA DISTRICT CDURS OF APPEAL. 

The Pespondents initially state that the Petitioners untimely 

raised the issue of whether the Fifth District Court of Appeal erred in 

ordering a new trial solely on the issue of punitive damges. The 

Petitioners first became aware that a new trial was being ordered solely 

on the issue of punitive damges when that Court's decision was ren- 

dered. The issue was promptly but unsuccessfully raised by the Peti- 

tioners in their Motion for Rehearing in the Fifth District Court of 

Appea 1 . 
The Respondents say they were prejudiced because they could have 

accepted the trial court's directed verdict against them on the issue of 

punitive damages by dismissing their crossclaim on that issue. The 

Respondents had arrple opportunity to evaluate the situation and inform 

the Fifth District Court of Appeal in their reply to the Petitioners1 

Motion for Rehearing that they desired not to pursue their appeal on 

their entitlement to punitive damages. Instead, they vigorously pursued 

their right to punitive damages and a new trial on that issue alone. 

The Respondents1 claim that they would lose interest accrued on 



their judgmnt and that the Defendants could become insolvent or inten- 

tionally waste their assets are not sufficient reasons for this Court to 

ignore the legal rights of the parties. 

In Lassiter v. Intern. Union of Engineers, 349 So.2d 622 (Fla. 

1976), which is relied on heavily by the Plaintiffs to support their 

position that this Court should remand for a new trial only on the issue 

of punitive damages, it should be noted that this Court and the Fourth 

District Court of Appeal ordered a new trial on both punitive and 

conpensatory damages. The Fourth District Court of Appeal in its 

decision on remand after the first appeal to this Court, 325 So.2d 408, 

(Fla. 4th DCA 1975), stated at Page 410: 

"And now, since we necessarily return the case for a new 
trial on the mtter of conpensatory damages, it would be an 
anomaly not to likewise return the issue of punitive dam- 
ages. If we said, as we did, that the balance between the 
two awards was irrpennissible, what would be the result if we 
now sustained the punitive damages and the new jury returned 
a lesser sun for conpensatory darnages on retrial, as it 
muld be authorized to do? The irrpennissible imbalance 
would be even larger with this court barred from appellate 
correction. 

"In sum, we are of the opinion that, after giving full 
credit to Rinaldi v. Aaron, supra, there remin fully 
sufficient legal reasons to still cause a new trial on the 
issue of punitive damages. Believing that the law and 
justice of the cause so indicate we, in accord with the 
mandate of the Supreme Court of Florida, reverse the awards 
of damages, conpensatory and punitive, and r e m d  for a new 
trial as to such issues.'' 

In Bankers Multiple Life Insurance Co. v. Farish, 464 So.2d 530 

(Fla. 1985) this Court affirmed the award of conpensatory damages and 

ordered a new trial only on the issue of punitive damages. But this 

Court noted, at page 533, that the basis for or the m u n t  of conpensa- 

tory damages was not argued. In the instant case the petitioners have 

challenged at every step the basis for and the amunt of conpensatory 



damages. 

In Hartford Accident & Indeminty Co. v. Ocha, 472 So.2d 1338 (fla. 

4th DCA 1984), it was the plaintiff, not the defendant, who argued that 

if punitive damages are to be retried so rmst the compensatory darnages. 

Bviously the plaintiff was dissatisfied with the amount of compensatory 

damages awarded to her by the jury. In the instant case the plaintiffs 

wre awarded in excess of $300,000.00 based on extremely fragile testi- 

mony as to liability for and the amount of compensatory damages. The 

Defendants submit that because evidence of so many fraud claims other 

than "~ceanfront~~ were presented to the jury, which were later de- 

termined to be legally insufficient, that justice demands that a new 

jury be inpaneled to consider only the one fraud claim that remains and 

the appropriate measure of damages relating thereto. 

The Plaintiffs suggest that if this Court determines that a new 

trial on the issue of both compensatory and punitive damages should be 

held that the trial court should be directed to inpanel the original 

jury to decide the issues. Besides the inpracticality of such proce- 

dure, and the lack of precedent for it , this approach would result in 

having a jury which has been exposed to ei@t days of testimony as to 

things that have now been largely determined to be irrelevant and 

imnaterial. 

'IHE llTW ISSUE" RULE SHOULD NUT BE SO APPLIFD AS TO 
SUSTAIN A VEKDICT QN W FRAUD CLAIM WIERB 'IHE T E S T I W  
RElATEs TD m A L  IMlwGES FR(llr/l SEPARATE, INDEPENDENT FRAUD 
CLAIMS, W OF WHICH SIaJlB NUT HAVE BEEN SUEMITIED TD 'IHE 
JURY. 

The Plaintiffs in their answer brief initially state that they do 



not concede that the trial judge erred in refusing to grant the Defen- 

dants a directed verdict on the "nature trailtt fraud issue, as was 

determined by the Fifth District Court of Appeal. They fail to point 

out that they have not filed a cross appeal as to this decision, even 

though they have raised two other matters in the cross appeal filed 

herein. This Court, therefore, does not have jurisdiction to consider 

the Fifth District Court of Appeals' decision on the "nature trail" 

fraud claims. The Defendants nevertheless state that the decision on 

the !!nature trailff was proper because of the cqlete lack of cqetent 

evidence in the record to support the claim. 

Although there was no recorded easement as to ocean access until 

August of 1983, the record in replete with testimony from the Plaintiffs 

that a nature trail and ocean access had ben provided from the time that 

Plaintiffs started moving into their units, albeit at a different 

location than they had expected. 

The issue in Great hrican Ins. Co. v. Coppedge, 405 So.2d 732 

(Fla. 4th DCEA 1981) was whether or not a fidelity bond covered the acts 

of an employee of a hotel, which sued the insurance cqany on a cross 

claim arising out of a guests' loss of jewelry. The bond provided that 

coverage existed only for losses resulting from an employee's fraudulent 

or dishonest act. The Court in Great American merely held that the 

evidence was sufficient to raise a jury question on the intent of the 

employee covered by the fidelity bond. 

As pointed out in the initial brief of the Petitioners herein, the 

Plaintiffs in their testimony sought to establish separate, independent 

claims of fraud, and not just separate theories of liability as to the 

same fraud claim. 



POINT IV. 

THE TRIAL axlfir OanlrIITn, REWEBIBLE FBRCR BY l%FUSING TO 
GRANT A DIRHXUI VEKDICT FOW. THE DEFENDANIS WITH FEGARD TO 
'ME ISSUE QF MISEPlUBENTATI(TJS THAT 'IHE PR0JM;T 
WAS "B~-FXNI"' . 

It is not in dispute that Plaintiffs had the burden at trial of 

proving each of the four essential elements of fraud with respect to 

the alleged fraudulent misrepresentation. Contrary to the arguments in 

Plaintiffs' answer brief, Plaintiffs failed to carry this burden with 

respect to the "ocean- f ront '' i ssue . 
As set forth in Point V of Defendants' initial brief, the test imny 

of the Plaintiffs as to "actual" value was not adnissible and should 

not have been considered by the jury. Excluding this evidence from the 

records, even Plaintiffs would concede that they failed to prove one of 

the two essential values necessary to establish ent i t lement to darmges. 

For this reason alone, the judgment must be reversed. 

POINT v. 
THE LOWER axlfir ERRED IN AIUMING 'IHE PLAINTIFFS TO 
~ I F Y A S T O ' I H E D ~ S T O ' I H E I R l ? R O P E R ! I ' Y C A U S E D B Y ' I H E  
ALLEGED MI-ENTATICNS. 

It is quite apparent, upon consideration of the argunents of 

Plaintiffs and Defendants in their prior briefs, that the propriety of 

allowing owners to testify in the manner permitted in the lower court is 

a case of first inpression in the Florida appellate courts. While 

Plaintiffs relied heavily on cases from outside Florida, none of these 

cases reflect the law of this state and none are binding on this court. 

Furthermore, Defendants see no reason why any of these cases should be 

adopted as the law of Florida. 



Contrary to Plaintiffs1 arguments, Florida has never adopted a 

blanket rule that an owner of property is conpetent, solely on the basis 

of his ownership, to testify as to the value of his property. See, 

Jones v. State, 408 So. 2d 690 (Fla. 2d DCA 1982) ; Washington Federal S&L 

v. Zuckerman-Vernon Corp, 414 So.2d 219 (Fla. 3dDCA 1982). In stating 

the rule the courts have been careful to avoid absolutes. Thus, the 

courts have held that an owner, ordinarily, by reason of ownership is 

qualified to testify as to the value of his land. Harbond, Inc. v. - 

Anderson, 134 So.2d 816 (Fla. 2d DCA 1961). The basis for the rule in 

Florida is the owner's presuned familiarity with the characteristics of 

his property, knowledge or acquaintance with its uses or purposes, and 

experience in dealing with it. Salvage & Surplus, Inc. v. Weintraub, 

131 So.2d 515 (Fla. 1st DCA 1961). 

In the present case, the Plaintiffs as owners of the property were 

allowed to testify as to the value of their property on the date of 

purchase. However, the Plaintiffs testified not as to a single value, 

but as to two separate and distinct values at one point in time. Each 

owner testified as to his purchase price or value as represented and as 

to a so called "actual" value which in all cases was less than the 

purchase price. As stated in Harbond, supra., the rule allows testimony 

as to - the value, or a singular opinion of valuation. In fact, no case 

in Florida has ever allowed an owner to testify as to two values at one 

given point in time. An examination of the basis for the Florida rule 

shows why the testimony of an owner rrmst be limited to a single opinion 

of value at a given point in time. 

The Plaintiffs in this case were allowed to give their opinions of 

value as of the date or instant of purchase. At that point in time, the 



only knowledge the owner of the property can be presuned to have is the 

purchase price and maybe the physical layout of the property. It is 

illogical to presune familiarity with uses or purposes or experience in 

dealing with the property at the instant of initial ownership. By 

allowing the Plaintiffs to testify to a value other than purchase price 

the court, as a matter of law, allowed Plaintiffs to testify based on 

factors and considerations which were outside the scope of the Florida 

rule on ownersf testimony. Furthemre, the testimony was allowed 

without any predicate as to what factors or considerations the 

Plaintiffs were relying on in reaching their opinions as to so called 

"actual value." 

Apart from stating their purchase price, the Plaintiffs in this 

case should have been held to the same standard of competence as any 

other witness who testifies as to the value of land. The Plaintiffs 

should have been qualified by showing that they had had an adequate 

opportunity to appraise themselves of the propertiesf worth and the 

value of land in the vicinity and of the same class. Harbond, supra. 

Not one of the Plaintiffs was so qualified prior to expressing his 

opinion as to ffactual" value. Accordingly, none of the Plaintiffs 

should have been allowed to express an opinion as to "actualff value at 

the time of purchase. 

Plaintiffs in their answer brief make the assunption that the 

testimony of the Plaintiffs with regard to actual value was sinply a 

statement as to the value of the Plaintiffsf individual units. This is 

an erroneous assuption and is contrary to the opinions actually 

elicited from the Plaintiffs. In each case, when expressing an opinion 

as to "actual" value, the Plaintiffs were not testifying as to the value 



of their units, they were testifying as to the alleged depreciation in 

value caused by events which were to have taken place on property which 

they did not own. They were testifying to the effect of removal of a 

portion of the subdivision from the development and the effect of 

failure to construct certain amenities on property other than their own. 

This is a far cry from an owner testifying as to the market value of 

property which he owns and one does not have to look outside of Florida 

to discover that such testimony is not within the general rule which 

allows an owner to testify. 

In Harbond, supra, the Plaintiff was ruled qualified to testify as 

an owner of property, but the court specifically held that the fact of 

ownership did not qualify the Plaintiff to testify as to the value of 

other unowned lands. Cbviously, an owner of property cannot be presumd 

to know, merely because of his ownership, the value of amenities or lack 

of amenities which are not to be located on his property. Similarly, 

there is nothing about ownership which creates a prestarption of 

knowledge as to the iqact on value of additions or deletions to the 

size of a subdivision. Without this presqtion, the owner must 

demonstrate some special knowledge or qualification which the Plaintiffs 

failed to even attenpt. 

Plaintiffs ask this court to reject the Florida limitations on an 

owner's testimony and allow Plaintiffs to substitute their unfounded 

personal beliefs for the conpetent proof of damages required by the law. 

There is siqly no need for allowing such speculative and purely 

conjectural opinion test i m y  in the current system. Corpetent value 

testimony is available througfi conparable sales, cost of construction or 

repair and a variety of other well recognized methods. An owner's 



testimony should continue to be limited to only matters which can be 

presuned to be within the owner's knowledge, and only as to the value of 

the owner's actual property. 

The trial court comnitted error in allowing the Plaintiffs to 

testify as to "actual1' value and the judgments based thereto must be 

reversed. As there is a conplete absence of other evidence with respect 

to damages, the cause should be remanded with directions to enter 

judgment for the Defendants. 

POINT VI. 

'IHE TRIm CClURT CYXlVII'ITED REVERSIBLE ERIEC%1 BY m I N G  
PLAINTIFFS TO 1- EVIDENCE AS TO 'IHE VmUE OF THE 
OCEANFIECWT TRAm lacATE0 EAST OF ?HE OCEAN lumm PLANNED 
UNIT DlNDDWEW. 

Plaintiffs have alleged that no objection was made to the testimony 

of Mr. Horn concerning the value of the oceanfront property. Counsel 

for the Plaintiffs knows full well that a proper and timely objection 

was made, it was simply made at the bench and out of the presence of the 

jury. The record clearly shows the bench conference took place after 

the question was objected to, but for some reason the court reporter 

simply failed to include the transcript of this bench conference. There 

is no other reason for the testimony to be interrupted at that point 

other than for the objection to the testimony. The objection was on the 

same grounds as the previous objection during the testimony of Mr. 

Stottler (R-1354). 

That the sole purpose of this evidence was to inflame the jury and 

provide a deep pocket is evidenced by Plaintiffs1 counsel's specific 

reference to the value on closing (R-1701). 



The evidence of value of the oceanfront property was clearly 

inadmissible and it was highly prejudicial to the Defendants to allow it 

into evidence. Accordingly, the judgments entered herein mst be 

reversed and the case remanded for a new trial. 

POINT VI I. 

?HE TRIAL COURT CIMWITI'ED REVERSIBLE H W R  IN A U N I K G  
PLAINTIFFS1 ~~ WITNESS, CHRIf5IWWB M. EWAFtDS, TO 
TESTIFY AND GIVE AN WINION AS TO D m .  

The record contains fourteen pages of specific objections to Mr. 

Edwards' testimony and argunent and discussion thereon (R-1261-1270; 

1285-1289). These objections, carplete with citations of authority, are 

the same objections raised in the appeal. Chce a valid objection to the 

testimony is nude and overruled, it is not necessary for the aggreived 

party to interpose additional objections at a later point to testimony 

from the same witness upon a subject falling within the scope of the 

previous objection and ruling. McCullers v. State, 143 So.2d 909 (Fla. 

1st DCA 1962). 

Plaintiffs go on to concede that Mr. Edwards' testimony was offered 

to "establish the obvious" and thus was not the proper subject of expert 

testimony. Plaintiffs again mintain that no objection was m d e  to the 

testimony on this ground. The thrust of Defendants' entire objection 

was that Mr. Edwards' testimony was speculative and conjectural and not 

the proper subject of expert testimony (R-1261-1270; 1285-1289). On 

this ground alone the testimony should have been excluded, as Plaintiffs 

concede. 

Plaintiffs have pointed to no case in Florida which allowed an 



expert to give such a speculative and conjectural opinion as that 

rendered by Mr. Edwards. Plaintiffs have also not pointed to any law 

that would justify allowing an appraiser to testify as to valuation 

without having performed any appraisals, and without even being familiar 

with the property to be valued. Most inportantly, Plaintiffs have 

failed to address the fact that the testimony does not relate to an 

issue in the case. 

The only issue upon which Mr. Edwards could testify is that of the 

value of the Plaintiffs1 property at the time of purchase, either as 

represented or actual. He testified the property would be worth lllessll 

if the oceanfront project were not included, but this opinion is 

irrelevant. The issue before the court was whether the properties were 

worth less than the amounts paid by the Plaintiffs. Mr. Edwards 

achitted he did not know how much the Plaintiffs paid and he was not 

given these figures in any hypothetical question. His testimony in the 

abstract was not responsive or probative to any issue in the case and 

therefore should not have been allowed. Florida Statutes, Section 

90.702 (1985). 

The extremely prejudicial nature of this testimony is anply 

demonstrated by the fact that Plaintiffs1 counsel used it in closing for 

exactly the purpose it was adnitted, to rubber stanp the testimony of 

the Plaintiffs that the actual value was less than the purchase price 

(R-1699). As set forth in Defendants1 initial brief, Plaintiffs were 

able to have an expert rubber stanp their theory of damages in this case 

with clearly inadnissible testimony. Accordingly, the judgments 

rendered herein must be reversed and the case remanded for new trial. 



The trial court properly directed a verdict against the Plaint i f fs 

on their claim for punitive damages. If the Fifth District Court of 

Appeals1 decision to order a new trial on the issue of punitive damages 

is affirmed, this Court should also direct that a new trial also be held 

on compensatory damages . 
With respect to the "oceanfront project" claim, the Plaintiffs 

failed to prove the essential elements of fraud. They failed to prove 

what the representation was, their reliance on it, and that the 

Defendants did not intend at the time to perform what was obviously 

something that would occur in the future. The only competent evidence 

of damages was the opinion testimony of the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs 

were not qualified to give these opinions either as experts or under the 

limited exception which allows owners of property to testify. 

Furthemre, the Plaintiffs1 testimony did not apportion the loss in 

value among the four alleged misrepresentations. Following the directed 

verdict as to two of these four claims, and the Fifth District Court of 

Appeal's ruling that one of the other two claims should not have gone to 

the jury, the opinions as to value necessarily included matters which 

were not proper for the jury to consider and there was no factual basis 

presented for the jury to be able to separate the admissible from the 

inadmissible. Striking the Plaintiffs1 opinion testimony from the 

record, there is absolutely no proof of darrages. Accordingly, the 

judgment should be reversed and the lower court directed to enter 

judgment for the Defendants on all claims. 

The allowance of inacfnissible evidence in the form of an opinion of 



value as to the oceanfront parcel and the opinion of damage as opposed 

to value from the Plaintiffs' expert were so highly prejudicial to the 

Defendants as to require that the judgments based thereon be set aside 

and the case remanded for new trial. 



FIRST 1-ATE 
(XRFTMTICN, a Florida corpora- 
tion; OCEAN WIDS, INC., a 
Florida corporation; 7TKNAS 
WASDIN, et al., 

CNUX M. ABLANED, et al., 

CASE NO. 67,848 
1 

ANSWER BRIEF QF PETITICNERS TO CROSS APPEAL 

Appeal from the District Court of Appeal, 
State of Florida, Fifth District 

J W  M. STARLING, ESQUIRE 
HOLLAND, STARLING & SEVERS, P.A. 
509 Palm Ave., P. 0. Box 669 
Titusville, FL 32781-0669 
(305) 267-1711 

Attorneys for Petitioners 



POINPj ON cRc6S APPEAL 

POINT I (AS STATED BY PLAINTIFFS) 

m TRIAL 03uRT' ERRm IN SIRIKING THE PLAINTIFFS' 
CLAIM FOR PUNITIVE I)AMGlB. 

POINT I1 (AS STATED BY PLAINTIFFS) 

'IHE TRIAL 03RT ERRED IN DIREXXING THE VERDICrS 
AGAINST CERTAIN PLAINTIFFS AS SFT aTT IN THE FEEED 
AND IN I S  AMENDEID FINAL -. 

As stated in the initial brief of the Petitioners, at Page 17, to 

which reference is made, a long line of Florida cases have held that the 

trial judge, even in fraud cases, must determine the preliminary 

question of whether the conduct of the Petitioners is so outrageous as 

to sustain an award of punitive damages. 

A full consideration of the testimony of all of the parties, as 

smrized in the Statement of Facts and of the Case (Pages 1-13 of the 

Initial Brief of Petitioners) , leads to the inevitable conclusion that 

the conduct of the Defendants was not so outrageous that the claim of 

punitive damages should have been submitted to the jury. 

As to the claim for punitive damages asserted against First 

Interstate, it should be pointed out that all of the Plaintiffs had 

dealings only with Ocean Woods and that none of them had ever heard of 

First Interstate until after they had purchased their units. 

The trial court properly directed verdicts against thirteen 

plaintiffs for the reasons set forth in the record because (i) some 

would have bought the property even though they knew of the alleged 

fraud, (ii) some testified they were not damaged and (iii) some bought 

their units from third persons and failed to establish the "represented 

valuerr part of the fomla for determining damages as an element of 

their transactions with such third persons. 



ARC-XMENT: ANSWER BRIEF 

POINT I (AS R E S T m  BY DEFlNBNS) 

'IHE TRIAL CDlJRT WAS CYBRKT IN STRIKING PLAINTIFFS1 CLAIM FIX 
RINITIVE DLWGES. 

At the close of the Plaintiffs1 case, the Petitioners moved to 

strike the claim for punitive damages. The trial court, having heard 

over five days of testimony, granted the motion and removed the issue of 

punitive damages from the consideration of the jury (R-1378, 1429). 

Contrary to the three argunents contained in Plaintiffs1 brief, the 

ruling of the trial judge was correct and should be affirmed. 

Plaintiffs initially argue that the question of punitive damages 

was not a proper threshold issue for the trial court to decide. It is 

interesting to note that Plaintiffs do not cite one single authority 

that directly supports this legal concept. Instead, Plaintiffs have 

ignored a long line of Florida cases which have reached exactly the 

opposite conclusion on the threshold question. In Winn & Lovett 

Grocery Co. v. Archer, 126 Fla. 308, 171 So. 214 (1936), the Florida 

Supreme Court held: 

"The province of the court in all cases of claims for punitive or 
exenplary damages is to decide at the close of the evidence, as a 
matter of law, the preliminary question whether or not there is any 
legal basis for recovery of such damages ....I1 

Not only has the above cited rule of law not been overruled, it has been 

expressly followed in numerous subsequent decisions of the Florida 

courts. Webbs City, Inc. v. Hancur, 144 So.2d 319 (Fla. 2d DCA 1962); 

Florida East Coast Railway Co. v. Morgan, 213 So.2d 632 (Fla. 3d DCA 

1968); Wackenhut Corp. v. Canty, 359 So.2d 430 (Fla. 1978). There can 

be no doubt that in Florida, the question of whether punitive damages 

will be allowed to go to the jury is a proper and necessary legal 



question for the trial judge to decide at the close of the evidence. 

Assming that the issue of punitive damages was properly a 

threshold question for the court to decide, Plaintiffs next argue that 

the evidence presented was sufficient to overcome the threshold inquiry. 

However, Plaintiffs, as the party claiming error, have the burden of 

clearly demonstrating the error for the appellate court. Mills Rock Co. 

v. Mills, 137 Fla. 607, 188 So. 210 (Fla. 1939). 

To be entitled to punitive damages in an action for fraudulent 

misrepresentations, the Plaintiffs must prove that the 

misrepresentations were characterized by malicious and outrageous 

aggravation. lhnn v. Shaw, 303 So.2d 6 (Fla. 1974). The Plaintiffs 

have failed to point to any relevant evidence of any malicious or 

outrageous aggravation in the present case. 

In their brief, Plaintiffs claim that the sales brochure received 

by some of the Plaintiffs is evidence of malicious or outrageous 

aggravation, but there is nothing in the brochure to support this 

conclusion. (R-2709-2711). Nowhere in the brochure is the tern 

lloceanfront project l1 or "oceanfront developnent l1 used, despi te the fact 

that those are the tern every single Plaintiff used in describing the 

misrepresentation. In the ligfit most favorable to the Plaintiffs, the 

tiny location map and some of the language migfit be misleading or 

confusing, but that is a far cry from malicious or outrageous 

aggravation of the claimed misrepresentations. 

Plaintiffs also pointed to a variety of other alleged wrongdoings 

as evidence of malicious and outrageous aggravation of the alleged 

misrepresentat ions (See pages 56 and 57 of Plaintiffs1 brief). These 

issues, control of the homeowners association and maintenance fees, 



were removed fran the consideration of the jury by directed verdict, and 

the jury was instructed to disregard the evidence relating thereto 

(R-1431). The ruling of the court on these issues is not the subject of 

this appeal and, therefore, the evidence referred to is irrelevant and 

outside of the record. The Fifth District has now determined that the 

"nature trailf1 issue should not have been presented to the jury. (A-2). 

The only outrageousness here is the Plaintiffs1 reliance on appeal of 

evidence which the court and jury could not properly consider at trial. 

Similarly, Plaintiffs1 argments of a comnercial fraud scheme to 

avoid corporate liability and take advantage of these poor home buyers 

is not supported by any evidence in the record. No party who had any- 

thing to do with Ocean \Voods escaped or avoided liability, and the issue 

of separate or distinct corporations is not an issue in this appeal. 

There is no evidence that any of the Plaintiffs were poor, or that this 

was the largest investment made by any Plaintiff. Plaintiffs are 

relying upon matters outside the record in an effort to enploy sympathy 

for their position. This is not a substitute for proof of malicious or 

outrageous aggravation. 

Anticipating that Plaintiffs wi 11 attenpt to rely on different 

portions of the transcript and testimony in their reply to this brief, 

Appellants would refer to the facts of the rXrnn case cited above. In 

Dunn, the persons accused of the fraud had occupied a personal and 

fiduciary relationship with their victims. The victims were shown to be 

mentally and physically inpaired. The defrauding parties had prior 

convictions for identical types of schemes, and the losses to the 

victims were complete in that they lost all they invested. Dunn v. 



Shaw, 303 So.2d 6 (Fla. 1974). There is nothing in the record of this 

case which comes close to this kind of fraudulent conduct. 

Plaintiffs' final argument on this issue is that they were entitled 

to punitive damages pursuant to the provisions of Florida Statutes, 

Section 817.41. The application of this statute was not properly raised 

in the trial court. 

Florida Statutes, Section 817.41, deals with false and misleading 

advertising and provides certain civil remedies in addition to criminal 

fines and penalties. There is no dispute that no reference was ever 

mde to this statute in any of Plaintiffs' pleadings. While the case of 

Vance v. Indian H m c k  Hunt and Riding Club, 403 So. 2d 1367 (Fla. 4th 

E A  1981), does hold that specific reference to the statute is 

unnecessary, the court specifically held that Plaintiffs mst plead 

sufficient facts to bring the allegations of the conplaint under the 

statute. Nowhere in Count IV of the amended complaint (R-2202-2204) is 

there any reference to advertising, false or otherwise. There is not 

even a reference to a written misrepresentation as to the oceanfront 

issue. Unlike in Vance, there is nothing in the pleadings in this case 

to provide any notice of a claim for false advertising under Florida 

Statutes, Section 817.41. 

Additionally, any potential claim based on the evidence at trial 

was precluded by the trial judge at the carmencement of the trial. 

Having received the proposed jury instruction, Defendants filed a motion 

in limine to exclude any claim based thereon due to the failure to plead 

and the prejudice from having no time to prepare a defense 

(R-2303-2304). The motion was granted and evidence on the statutory 

claim was not allowed (See R-1620). 



Finally, even if a claim under Florida Statutes, Section 817.41 had 

been properly plead, the Plaintiffs would not have been entitled to 

punitive damages. The jury would first have had to find that there was 

fraudulent advertising, an issue which was not even put to the jury. 

Even more importantly, the statute does not eliminate the threshold 

determination which the trial court must make before submitting punitive 

damages to the jury. In Vance v. Indian Hatmock Hunt 81 Riding Club, 

supra, the court held that even under the statute, punitive damages are 

allowed only where the fraud is acconpanied by malicious and outrageous 

aggravation and cited the Winn and Dunn cases discussed above. Thus, 

even if a claim were properly plead and proven under the statute, 

punitive damages would not be proper in this case because of the absence 

of proof of malicious or outrageous aggravation. 

In conclusion, the question of allowing punitive damages to go to 

the jury is a proper threshold question for the trial court to decide, 

and based on the lack of proof of malicious or outrageous aggravation, 

the trial court's decision to strike the claim for punitive damages was 

correct and must be affirmed. 



POINT 11 (AS RESTrnByDrnANIS) 

'IHE TRIAL CKIURT MLAS CORRECT IN DIRECTIN2 VERDICIS AGAINST CJXJXIN 
OF 'IHE PLAINTIFFS. 

Plaintiffs first object to the directed verdict which was granted 

against Mr. Darrow L. Webb. 01 direct examination, Mr. Webb testified 

as follows: 

llQ. Would you have bought your uni t , had you known it was not 
gonna be oceanfront? 
A, I think possibly I still would have bought it.?' (R-1049, 
lines 24-25, 1050, 1 ine 1). 

In Pryor v. Oak Ridge Development Corporation, 119 So. 326 (Fla. 

1928) cited by Plaintiffs, the court specifically held that for a 

misrepresentation to be actionable the misrepresentation mst have been 

an inducement to the contract. Similarly, in Great hrican Ins. GI. of 

New York v. Suarez, 92 Fla. 24, 109 So. 299 (1926) the court held that 

if it can be shown that the contract would have been executed even if 

there had been no fraud, then the fraud cannot be material. In Morris 

v. Ingraffia, 18 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1944), the Supreme Court again held that 

a representation is not material when the contract or transaction would 

have been entered into notwithstanding the fraud. 

As with all the other elements of fraud, Plaintiff had the burden 

of proving materiality. The direct proof offered by Plaintiffs show 

that Mr. Webb would have purchased his uni t even if there had been no 

fraud. Plaintiffs1 attempt to infer materiality based on other portions 

of Mr. Webb's testimony is no substitute for his direct and clear 

testimony that he would probably have purchased his unit anyway. By his 

own direct testimony, the alleged representations were not material to 

Mr. Webb and the trial court was correct in granting Defendants a 

directed verdict on this claim. 



Plaintiffs next object to the directed verdict which was granted 

against Harry A. Kadan and Mary S. Kadan. Qlly Mr. Kadan testified, and 

on cross examination he stated: 

I1Q. Did Tom Wasdin or his coqany defraud you in any way? 
A. Not at that time (R-1060, lines 19-22). 
Q. Mr. Kadan, are you telling this jury that Tom Wasdin defrauded 
you, sir? 
A. I'm not saying that at all.I1 (R-1061, lines 3-5). 

There was no redirect examination by Plaintiffs1 counsel. There is no 

confusion apparent in the transcript and certainly no effort was made to 

clarify his answers or explain them. It is absurd for counsel to argue 

that a jury can award a person damges for fraud when that same person 

tells the jury that no one defrauded him. Opposing counsel has cited no 

authority for his position because no such authority exists. Mr. 

Kadanls further testimony that he got his monies1 worth and that he got 

a bargain (R-1060-1061) only add further enphasis to his statement that 

he was not defrauded. The jury cannot have the right to disregard the 

Plaintiff's testimony that no wrong was done to him and then award him 

damges for that same wrong. 

Plaintiffs also object to the directed verdicts which were granted 

against the Fishers and the Woods. Mr. Fisher testified on direct 

examination that he paid thirty-nine thousand dollars ($39,000.00) for 

his unit and that that was the actual value of it at the time of the 

purchase (R-445-446). Mr. Woods testified on direct examination that he 

paid twenty-nine thousand four hundred dollars ($29,400.00) for his unit 

and that the actual value of his unit at the time of purchase was also 

twenty-nine thousand four hundred do1 lars ($29,400.00) (R-708-710). 

Plaintiffs argue that these witnesses were confused but this testimony 

was given on direct examination by Plaintiffs1 own counsel. The record 



does not demonstrate any confusion, and in fact, the court assisted Mr. 

Woods with his testimony to clear up any possible arhiguity (R-709). 

While the answers given may not have been the answers Plaintiffsf 

counsel wanted to hear, there is nothing in the record to indicate that 

the answers were anything other than sinple , honest, direct answers to 

the quest ions asked. 

It is fundamental in Florida that actual damages and the measure of 

them are essential as a matter of law in proving a claim for fraud. 

National Equipnent Rental, Ltd. v. Little Italy Restaurant & 

Delicatessen, Inc., 362 So. 2d 338 (Fla. 4th D(=A 1978). Whether damages 

for fraud are measured by the "benef i t -of- the-bargainff or the 

ffout-of-pocketff rules, Plaintiffs are required to prove the actual value 

of the property at the time of purchase. Strickland v. Muir, 198 So.2d 

49 (Fla. 4th D(=A 1967). Failure to prove damages with definiteness and 

certainty prohibits recovery in fraud. Dd?uis v. 79th Street Hotel, 

Inc., 231 So.2d 532 (Fla. 3d D(=A 1970) cert. den. 238 So.2d 105 (Fla.). 

With respect to Plaintiffs Woods and Fisher, there was no evidence 

presented that would establish any damage or injury with the degree of 

certainty required by law. 

It is interesting to note that Plaintiffsf counsel refers to the 

testimony of Mr. Fisher and Mr. Woods as statements of their "personal 

belief." This is precisely the argument that Defendants have made in 

their appeal and Defendants would readily concede that this is the 

proper characterization of the value testimony of all the Plaintiffs. 

Plaintiffs were not testifying as to market value at the time of the 

transaction as required by law but were testifying to Ifpersonal value," 

a concept which has no relevance under any accepted theory of damages 



for fraud. 

Plaintiffs argue that the fact that Fisher and Woods testified that 

there was no di fference between actual and represented value should not 

prevent recovery because there was also the testimony of an expert for 

the jury to consider. However, the testimony of Mr. Edwards, 

Plaintiffs' expert, does not satisfy the requirements of definiteness 

and certainty required by law with regard to proof of damages. 

Mr. Edwards did not testify as to any values of the Fisher and 

Woods properties. Mr. Edwards merely testified that the properties 

would be worth less (R-1296). He did not say less than purchase price, 

less than represented value, less than anything, nor did he relate his 

opinion to any specific point in time. As set forth by the Florida 

Supreme Court in West Florida Land Co. v. Studebaker, 37 Fla. 28, 19 So. 

176 (1896), where the evidence wholly fails to fix the actual value of 

the land, or the time at which the assessments of value were made, it is 

too uncertain and indefinite to form the basis of an award of darnages 

for fraud. 

In short, the only evidence of damage in the record is the 

testimony of Mr. Fisher and Mr. Woods which establish without question 

or contradiction that they suffered no damage or injury as a result of 

any of the alleged misrepresentations. In the absence of any proof of 

injury, the directed verdicts against Woods and Fisher were required as 

a matter of law, and the trial judge mst be affirmed. 

Plaintiffs also object to the trial court's panting of directed 

verdicts against eight Plaintiffs who did not purchase from the 

Defendants. These eight Plaintiffs purchased from persons who were not 

parties to the suit and who were not even called as witnesses. Contrary 



to the arguments set forth in Plaintiffs1 brief, the reason for these 

directed verdicts was not the sinple lack of privity between the 

Plaintiffs and Defendants. The reason for the directed verdicts as to 

these eight Plaintiffs was their failure to offer any proof on the value 

of the property at the time of purchase as represented. Each of these 

Plaintiffs testified to their purchase price and gave their I1personal 

beliefn of the actual value at the time of purchase. However, where 

there is a lack of privity between the purchaser and the party allegedly 

cmitting the fraud, this testimony is not sufficient to support an 

award of damages. 

While it is true that the purchase price of the property is strong, 

but not conclusive evidence of the value as represented, West Florida 

Land Co. v. Studebaker, 37 Fla. 28, 19 So. 176 (1896), this rule mst 

necessarily fall when the person allegedly making the misrepresentations 

did not set the price which was paid. In the present case, there is not 

one single bit of evidence that the Defendants were ever aware of the 

price being asked by these third parties. In fact, one of the eight 

Plaintiffs, Linda Harris, achitted that she could have bought the same 

unit from the Defendants for some twenty thousand do1 lars ($20,000.00) 

less than she agreed to pay some third party (R-833). Not one of the 

third party sellers testified. There was no evidence of how these 

sellers arrived at their purchase price, whether it included the nature 

trail and the oceanfront, or any other mtter that went into the 

determination of their selling price. Each of the eight Plaintiffs was 

asked whether they knew what their sel ler had included in the purchase 

price (See for exanple R-231), and not one of these eight knew how the 

purchase price was determined by their respective sel lers (R-231). In 



other words, there was no testimony as to value of the property as 

represented and no testimony which muld support an inference that the 

purchase price reflected this value. If it were proven that each seller 

was acting under the same alleged mistaken beliefs as the Plaintiffs, 

then it may be possible to infer that the selling price was equal to the 

value as represented. Plaintiffs, however, ask that the jury be allowed 

to infer that the sellers shared the same beliefs so that they could 

then infer that the sales price was equal to the value as represented. 

Such an inference upon an inference is inpermissible under the law of 

Florida. Simnons v. Pittm, 138 So.2d 765 (Fla. 1st DCA 1962); 

McCormick Shipping Corp. v. Warner, 129 So.2d 448 (Fla. 3d DCA 1961); 

Voelker v. Ca&ined Ins. Co., 73 So.2d 403 (Fla. 1954). Accordingly, 

there was a complete lack of proof as to one of the essential elements 

of the damages fomla. That the trial court understood this problem of 

pyramiding inferences is reflected in the court's ruling at page 242 of 

the record, and subsequent rulings on each of the eight Plaintiffs. 

Since the Plaintiffs failed to offer competent proof that any of 

these eight Plaintiffs had been damaged by any alleged 

misrepresentations, the Defendants were entitled to directed verdicts as 

a matter of law, and the judgment appealed from should be affirmed with 

respect to said directed verdicts. 



The question of whether to allow the issue of punitive damages to 

go to the jury was a proper threshold question for the trial court to 

consider. There was a conplete lack of evidence of mlicious or outra- 

geous aggravation of any of the alleged misrepresentations and Plain- 

tiffs have failed to demonstrate that the trial judge abused his dis- 

cretion in striking the claim for punitive damages. A claim under 

Florida Statutes, Section 817.41 was not raised in the pleadings and was 

properly excluded by timely motion in limine. In any event, the stat- 

utory claim does not eliminate the threshold question or the burden of 

proof with respect to punitive damages. Accordingly, the decision of 

the trial court should be affirmed on this point. 

Finally, the trial court was correct in granting directed verdicts 

against Plaintiffs, Webb, Fisher, Kadan, Woods, Asp, Banks, Billias, 

Bocook, Frank, Morgan, Harri s , Ne 1 son and Winchester , primri ly because 

of the failure of these Plaintiffs to prove any damages by their own 

testimony. 

With respect to the issues raised by Plaintiffs in their cross 

appeal, the decision of the trial judge should be affirmed. 
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